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EASTERN REGIONAL INTERSTATE

CHILD SUPPORT ASSOCIATION

March 26, 2007

Office of Child Support Enforcement
Administration for Children and Families
370 L’Enfant Promenade, SW., 4" Floor
Washington, DC 20447

Attention: Director, Policy Division

Mail Stop: OCSE/DP

RE: COMMENTS ON DRA OF 2005 NPRM
January 24, 2007 Federal Reqister, Page 3093

Dear Sir/Madam:;

The Eastern Regional Interstate Child Support Association (ERICSA) is a non-profit
organization that for 34 years has brought together judges and other decision-makers,
public and private attorneys, and child support professionals, predominately from the
eastern half of the United States. ERICSA’s mission is to build a stronger interstate child
support community by developing and advocating effective policy, facilitating
communication, and delivering innovative professional training in order to enhance the
well-being of families. We have engaged federal and state legislators in the creation,
evolution and expansion of a program that provides critical financial support to over 16
million families. A large number of the 16 million families have moved from welfare to
self-sufficiency due in significant part to the child and medical support established and
enforced through the 1VV-D program.

On behalf of the ERICSA, and the child support community as a whole, | have requested
that Congress restore the funding to the child support program that was cut by Deficit
Reduction Act of 2005 (DRA) As you are aware, this legislation dramatically reduced the
federal government’s commitment to the national child support enforcement program.
Most states are having difficulty finding other sources of funding to replace the amount
that was cut by the DRA.

One of the unique features of the child support enforcement program is that unlike
government public assistance programs, it has a major interstate component, and requires
close collaboration among the states to provide services on behalf of children whose
parents live in different states. Failure to restore the full funding for the program will
have widespread implications in all states, not just the state which cannot restore the
funding, and will especially adversely impact low-income families. ERICSA would
appreciate any actions you can take to facilitate the restoration of this funding to ensure
the continuance of a strong child support program.
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Congress’ 2006 passage of the DRA provided important new tools to assist state and
local government agencies improve their collection rate, such as lowering the passport
denial threshold, adding tax offsets for older children, simplifying distribution of support,
and expanding medical support options. ERICSA is pleased to have these new tools
available as it will improve the ability of the child support community to serve families
across the nation.

In regard to the Notice of Proposed Rulemaking for the Child Support
Enforcement Program to implement the Deficit Reduction Act, which was
published in the January 24, 2007 Federal Register, ERICSA has the following
comments:

In Section 301.1, General Definitions, we support the proposed regulation change to
allow offset of a noncustodial parent’s federal tax income tax refund for collection of
past-due support owed on behalf of children who are no longer minors. This provision is
family-friendly, since it will allow the child support program to forward to non-assistance
families more past-due child support from the federal income tax refunds of noncustodial
parents. The revised federal law now allows a consistent use of this enforcement tool for
all child support debt, regardless of the age of the children and the party to whom it is
owed. However, we have several questions regarding this definition. (1) On page 3094,
please confirm that it is a correct interpretation that there is no requirement to distinguish
separately cases that qualified under rules prior to and after October 1, 2007. (2) Also we
query if this definition should be interpreted to mean that persons owed child support for
non-minor children may apply for non-TANF services to gain access to Federal tax
refund offset without having received non-TANF child support services when the child
was a qualified child. It appears that the definition can be read to support the latter
interpretation.

Next, we support the selection of the Federal fiscal year as the fixed period for imposing
and reporting the annual $25 fee under §302.33(e). If the federal fiscal year is not
selected, then ERICSA urges that all states be required to use the same reporting year.
Use of the same reporting year will ensure that the fee is implemented consistently
among the States, and avoid imposition of the fee by more than one State for the same
period.

Similarly, we agree with the selection of the initiating State as the one to impose and
report the annual fee in interstate 1\VV-D cases, as proposed in §303.7(e). There must be a
consistent Federal standard, and the initiating State is in the best position to determine
when it is appropriate to impose the fee.

We urge clarification of the discussion on page 3095 toward the end of the second
paragraph under “When the $500 of Support Threshold Is Reached”. In particular, the
following statement should be explained in more detail: “If $500 in support is collected in
one year but not disbursed until the next year, the fee would be imposed in the year in
which the collection was actually disbursed to the family.” It is clear from this statement
that if a single (and the only) $500 collection is received in one year but not disbursed
until the following year, the fee would apply in the following year, because $500 is
disbursed in that year. However, the statement could be read (although we do not think it
should be) to require imposition of a fee in the following year when $500 total support is
collected in one year, but only $450 is disbursed in that year, and $50 disbursed in the
following year. Itis clear to us that a fee should not be imposed in these circumstances,
but the language of the referenced statement could imply to someone that a fee should be
imposed in such a case.
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We also think it would be helpful to clarify in the preamble to the regulations whether or
not to impose an annual fee in a case in which the individual never received assistance
prior to disbursement of $500 support within the year, but begins receiving assistance
during the year, but after disbursement of the $500.

For states that require legislation to adopt the fee and such legislation will not be
implemented at the beginning of the federal fiscal year, we request specific clarification
about whether the imposition of the fee would apply to all cases retroactively to the
beginning of the federal fiscal year, or only to those cases in which $500 is disbursed
after the effective date of the state law. The regulations are not clear as to the particulars
of when each state must begin reporting the fee. How would the fee be implemented, for
example, where the effective date of the law will be April 1, 2008? Would the fee be
required to be applied for all cases for the full fiscal year when only 6 months of the year
(April - Sept) has transpired since the state will have had authority to charge the fee?
ERICSA strongly recommends that the state should not be required to impose the fee
retroactively for any disbursements that occurred prior to the effective date of the state
law.

In the conference call on March 21, 2007 with OCSE, a question was raised regarding the
reporting requirements for the OCSE 34A in the situation in which the fee is taken from
the next disbursement after the first $500. Since the NPRM is clear that the NCP must be
given credit for such collection, should the fee show as a disbursement, even though it
will be retained by the state? For example, would a state who collects the fee from the
custodial parent continue to count the collection on the OCSE 34A as distributed to the
family? Explicit guidance is necessary on how the fee should be accounted for and
reconciled with all relevant Federal reporting forms.

Our last comment with regard to the annual fee is in response to the specific request
toward the top of the first column on page 3097 for “ways to effectively ensure timely
collection of the annual fee.” It is clear to us that billing the custodial party or the
noncustodial parent for the fee will be administratively impractical. If they do not pay,
the State will have to resort to retaining the fee from collected support or paying it from
its own funds. Therefore, it seems most effective and efficient to simply plan at the
outset on collecting the fee in one of these latter ways, rather than attempting to get it
from either party.

Under Section 303.72(h)(3)(ii), the proposed regulations indicate States must inform CPs
if the state is going to continue to apply IRS offset collections to assigned support arrears
first, before they are applied to non-assigned arrears. Why would this be required if there
is no change in how the state chooses to distribute IRS offset collections? A notice
should only be required if the state opts to make a change from what the current
distribution regulations require for IRS offset collections. If there is no change, a notice
should not be required. This proposed requirement is not addressed in the DRA and
should not be imposed on states.

Our final specific comment concerns the three-year order review under proposed
8303.8(b)(1). We request clarification as to when the three-year period begins. Does the
three-year cycle begin on the date of the IV-A assignment or the date of the most recent
order, modification, or review?

X
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ERICSA urges OCSE to provide guidance as soon as possible regarding the remaining
DRA provisions. For example, Section 7301 of DRA which addresses Assignment and
Distribution of Child Support Collections has many aspects that states need Federal
guidance on as soon as possible, as states need to make budget recommendations one to
two years prior to the actual implementation of such changes. ERICSA is aware that there
is a workgroup that is concentrating on the Distribution changes, and therefore we urge
OCSE to share with states the issues, concerns and questions that have been raised to
date, even if resolutions have not yet been determined.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment.

Sincerely,

Diane Jordan
President Elect
ERICSA
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